

No. R. 250 31 March 2010

CHILDREN'S ACT, 2005 REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION

The Minister of Justice and Constitutional Development has—

- after consultation with the Minister of Social Development, under section 75; and (a)
- (b) under section 280,

of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005), made the regulations in the Schedule.

SCHEDULE

CONTENTS

CHAPTER I DEFINITIONS

1. Definitions

CHAPTER II CLERKS OF CHILDREN'S COURTS

- 2. Application for appointment as clerk
- 3. Appointment requirements of clerk
- 4. Conditions of appointment of clerk
- 5. Additional functions, powers and duties of clerk

CHAPTER III CHILDREN'S COURTS

Part 1: Children's Court Proceedings

- 6. Bringing matter to court
- Attendance of proceedings 7.
- 8. Deviation of time periods
- 9. Witnesses
- 10. Additional powers of court

Part 2: Investigations, Conferences and Forums

- 11. Investigations
- 12. Pre-hearing conferences
- 13. Family group conferences
- 14. Lay forums

CHAPTER IV INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION

- 15. Application for the return of child to the Republic
- 16. Access to child wrongfully removed or retained
- 17. Application to return child to a contracting state
- 18. Appointment of persons by Chief Family Advocate
- 19. Obstruction of Chief Family Advocate, Family Advocate or person appointed
- 20. Court appearances
- 21. Fees of person appointed by Chief Family Advocate
- 22. Recovery of expenditure
- 23. Expeditious handling of proceedings
- 24. Procedure in High Court
- 25. Declarations by High Court
- 26. Proof of documents and evidence
- 27. Power to order disclosure of child's whereabouts
- 28. Evidence in support of application
- 29. Response



Polity

30.	Adjournmen
50.	/ lajour milici

- 31. Assistance to prevent removal from jurisdiction
- 32. Surrender of passport documents

CHAPTER V MISCELLANEOUS

- 33. Keeping of records
- 34. Submission of statistics to Magistrates Commission
- 35 Remuneration of persons not in employ of state
- 36. Contribution orders
- 37. Patent errors
- 38. Offences and penalties
- 39. Short title and commencement

ANNEXURE

Form No

- Register regarding matters brought to the Children's Court In terms of section 53 of the 1. Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)
- 2. Bringing matter to children's court in terms of section 53 of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)
- 3. Notice to parties to attend a pre-hearing conference in terms of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)
- Notice to attend proceedings of the children's court in terms of section 57 of the Children's 4. Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)
- 5. Referral of matter to *family group conference/lay-forum in terms of sections 70 and 71 of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)
- 6. Subpoena to witness to appear before the children's court in terms of section 59 of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)
- 7. Medical report and age assessment of child in terms of section 48(2) of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)
- Court certificate of estimated age of child 8.
- 9. Order of a children's court to carry out an investigation in terms of section 50 of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)
- 10. Application for the return of a child wrongfully removed/retained in terms of the Hague Convention on the Civil Aspects of International Child Abduction
- 11. Application for access to a child wrongfully removed/retained in terms of the Hague Convention on the Civil Aspects of International Child Abduction
- 12. Summons in contribution or attachment of wages order proceedings
- 13. Notice of hearing of application for variation, suspension, rescission or revival of contribution order or attachment of wages order
- 14. Application for the variation, suspension, rescission or revival of contribution or attachment of wages order
- 15. Contribution order
- 16. Order to an employer to deduct an amount from a respondent's wages
- 17. Record of proceedings in the Children's Court in terms of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005)



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts an... Page 3 of 47

Polity

CHAPTER I **DEFINITIONS**

Definitions

- 1. In these Regulations any word or expression to which a meaning has been assigned in the Act has the meaning so assigned to it and, unless the context otherwise indicates—
- "applicant" includes any person, institution or body vested with parental authority that applies for assistance under the Hague Convention;
- "apply" means making a formal written request under the Hague Convention and "application" has a corresponding meaning;
- "Chief Family Advocate" means the Chief Family Advocate referred to in section 276(1)(a) of the Act;
- "chairperson of the pre-hearing conference" means the person who sets up and conducts a prehearing conference as provided for in section 69(4)(a) of the Act;
- "clerk" means a clerk of the children's court;
- "court" means a children's court;
- "day" does not include a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday;
- "department" means the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development;
- "Director-General" means the Director-General of the department, or a person delegated by him or her;
- "facilitator" means a facilitator of a family group conference as provided for in regulation 13(1) of these Regulations;
- "family group conference" means a family group conference as provided for in section 70 of the Act and regulation 13 of these Regulations;
- "Hague Convention" for purposes of Chapter IV of these Regulations, means the Hague Convention on International Child Abduction;
- "lay forum" means a lay forum as provided for in section 71 of the Act and regulation 14 of the Regulations;
- "pre-hearing conference" means a pre-hearing conference as provided for in section 69 of the Act and regulation 12 of these Regulations;
- "regional head" means the person appointed in the position of manager of each of the nine regional offices of the department;
- "respondent", for the purposes of Chapter IV of these Regulations, includes a person who removed or retained a child, or who prevented the exercise of rights of access to a child; and
- "the Act" means the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005).

CHAPTER II CLERKS OF CHILDREN'S COURTS

Application for appointment as clerk

2. An application for appointment as a clerk, as provided for in section 67(1) of the Act, must be in writing on Form Z 83(81/971431) as prescribed by the Department of Public Service Administration and must be submitted to the Director-General.

Appointment requirements for clerk



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts an... Page 4 of 47

Polity

3. A person may be appointed as a clerk by the Director-General if he or she complies with the appointment requirements as stipulated in the Public Service Act, 1994 (Proclamation No. 103 of 1994), and the appointment policies developed by the department for a post of administrative clerk in the department.

Conditions of appointment of clerk

- 4. (1) The Director-General may appoint a person as a clerk for the period agreed to between the Director-General and the person, who is entitled to an all inclusive remuneration package equal to that of an administrative clerk in the department.
- (2) The conditions of service of a person appointed as a clerk in terms of subregulation (1) are the same as the conditions of service applicable in respect of a person appointed as clerk of a magistrate's court in terms of the Public Service Act, 1994 (Proclamation No. 103 of 1994).

Additional functions, powers and duties of clerk

- **5.** In addition to the functions determined by the Act, a clerk must—
- upon receipt of a notification as provided for in regulation 6 open a file and number the (a) matter with a consecutive number for the year;
- (b) keep and update a register regarding all the matters brought to the court which corresponds substantially with Form 1 of the Annexure;
- (c) mark every document received afterwards relating to that matter with the number as assigned to the specific matter;
- (d) file any documentation received on the appropriate file;
- assist, to the best of his or her ability, any person who requires assistance with the (e) completion of any document relating to the proceedings in the court;
- (f) perform the duties assigned to him or her in terms of these Regulations;
- inform a witness who is subpoenaed by the presiding officer of the court in the matter that (g) he or she is entitled to witness fees and ensure that the witness is assisted in this regard, where necessary;
- (h) perform the duties of the clerk of a civil court insofar as it is necessary to give effect to the provisions of the Act; and
- keep a register of investigators appointed by the court in terms of section 75(1)(b) of the (i) Act, in which the following must be entered
 - the full names of the investigator; (i)
 - (ii) the identity number of the investigator;
 - the address and contact details of the investigator; and (iii)
 - (iv) the matter for which the investigator was appointed.

CHAPTER III CHILDREN'S COURTS

Part 1: Children's Court Proceedings

Bringing matter to court

6. (1) A person referred to in section 53 of the Act, who intends to bring a matter to court in terms of that section, must notify the clerk of his or her intention to do so on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 2 of the Annexure.

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts an... Page 5 of 47 **Polity**

- (2) The clerk must, within five days after receipt of the notice referred to in subregulation (1), refer the matter to a presiding officer of the court, who must, within seven days after receiving the documentation relating to the matter, refer-
- the matter for mediation to a-(a)
 - (i) family group conference in terms of section 70 of the Act; or
 - (ii) lay-forum in terms of section 71 of the Act;
- (b) the matter for a pre-hearing conference in terms of section 69(1) of the Act; or
- (c) the matter to court.

Attendance of proceedings

- **7.** (1) If the presiding officer of the court decides under regulation 6(2)(c) that the matter should be referred to court, or if the matter was referred back to the court by a facilitator of a family group conference or by a chairperson of a lay forum, the presiding officer of the court in question must assign a date for the matter to be heard in court, which date must be within 30 days after the presiding officer of the court has decided that the matter must be heard in court or after the matter was referred back to the court by a facilitator of a family group conference or a chairperson of a lay forum.
- (2) The clerk must, within five days after the presiding officer of the court has assigned a court date as referred to in subregulation (1), and at least 15 days before the date of the hearing, notify the parties, to attend the proceedings of the court, on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 4 of the Annexure.
 - (3) The notice referred to in subregulation (2) must be—
- served personally on a party by a sheriff, a clerk, or a person authorised by the presiding (a) officer of the court;
- (b) submitted to a party by registered post; or
- (c) served or submitted in any other manner as directed by the presiding officer of the court.
- (4) A written report as provided for in section 63(1) of the Act must be submitted to the presiding officer of the court no later than 10 days prior to the hearing of the matter.

Deviation from time periods

- 8. (1) A party to the proceedings in a court, or his or her legal representative, may request the court for a deviation from any period of time prescribed in these Regulations, which request must be in writing, stating the reasons for the request and submitting any proof to substantiate his or her reasons.
 - (2) A court may-
- (a) grant a deviation from any period of time prescribed in these Regulations, on the conditions that the court deems fit, if any other party-
 - (i) did not raise any objections; or
 - did not respond but that party's rights will not be affected if a deviation from (ii) any period of time prescribed in these Regulations is granted;
- (b) refuse a deviation from any period of time prescribed in these Regulations, if any other party-
 - (i) raises an objection and that party's rights may be affected if a deviation from any period of time prescribed in these Regulations is granted; or
 - (ii) does not respond but that party's rights may be affected if a deviation from any period of time prescribed in these Regulations is granted.

Witnesses

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts an... Page 6 of 47

- Polity
 - 9. (1) The clerk may subpoen any person to appear as a witness in a matter before the court at least 10 days before the date of the hearing on a form that corresponds substantially with Form 6 of the Annexure.
 - (2) A person referred to in section 59(1)(b) or (c) of the Act, who intends to have a witness subpoenaed must, within 15 days before the date of the hearing, request the clerk to issue a subpoena to that witness, and the clerk must without delay issue the subpoena.
 - (3) The subpoena referred to in subregulation (1) must be—
 - (a) served personally on a party by a sheriff, a clerk, or a person authorised by the presiding officer of the court;
 - (b) submitted to a party by registered post; or
 - (c) served or submitted in any other manner as directed by the presiding officer of the court.

Additional powers of court

- 10. (1) A court may, if there is any uncertainty regarding the age of a person who appears to be a child-
- request any documentation, evidence or statements relevant to the estimation of the age (a) of that person from any person, body or institution; or
- refer that person to a medical practitioner employed by the state of the court's choice for (b) an estimation of that person's age.
- (2) The medical practitioner referred to in subregulation (1)(b), must complete a form which corresponds substantially with Form 7 of the Annexure.
- (3) In the absence of a valid birth certificate, identity document or passport, the court must, on all the available evidence make an estimation of the age and possible date of birth of the person referred to in subregulation (1) by using, as a guide—
- Form 7 of the Annexure completed by a medical practitioner as provided for in (a) subregulation (1)(b); or
- (b) a record of immunisation issued by a clinic.
- (4) An estimation of age in terms of subregulation (3), must be entered into the court record as the estimated age and date of birth of the person.
- (5) Where a court makes an estimation of age in terms of subregulation (3), a form which corresponds substantially with Form 8 of the Annexure must be completed and handed to the social worker involved with the matter to be handed in at the Department of Home Affairs to be dealt with in terms of the Births and Deaths Registration Act, 1992 (Act No. 51 of 1992) and the Identification Act, 1997 (Act No. 68 of 1997).

Part 2: Investigations, Conferences and Forums

Investigations

- 11. (1) An order of a court in terms of section 50 of the Act to carry out an investigation or further investigation must be on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 9 of the Annexure.
- (2) A person who has been ordered by a court in terms of section 50(1) of the Act to carry out an investigation or further investigation may, for the purpose of performing his or her functions—
- (a) question any person who is likely to give material or relevant information about any matter that the court ordered him or her to investigate; and
- (b) request a person to identify himself or herself to the satisfaction of the investigator.
- (3) An investigator may, in investigating a matter so ordered by a court and with due consideration to expediting the investigation of that matter, request any person to—

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts an... Page 7 of 47

- Polity
 - (a) meet with him or her at a specific time and place on a specific date; and
 - (b) provide him or her at the meeting, with information relating to the matter and documentary proof of the information, if applicable.
 - (4) (a) A request referred to in subregulation (2) may be made in the manner the investigator deems fit.
 - (b) An investigator must keep a written record of
 - the manner in which the request referred to in paragraph (a) was made; (i)
 - (ii) any matter he or she investigates;
 - (iii) any meetings held with him or her; and
 - (iv) the outcome of the investigation.
 - (5) After the investigator has concluded the investigation ordered by a court he or she must compile a written report which must contain the following information:
 - (a) The matter which was investigated;
 - (b) the reason for the investigation;
 - (c) the manner of the investigation; and
 - (d) the outcome of the investigation.
 - (6) The investigator must submit the report referred to in subregulation (5) to the court within 10 days after the conclusion of the investigation.

Pre-hearing conferences

- 12. (1) If a court has ordered that a pre-hearing conference as provided for in section 69 of the Act must be held, the court-
- (a) must direct who must attend the pre-hearing conference;
- (b) must direct who will chair the pre-hearing conference; and
- may, if necessary, direct that a court interpreter must attend the pre-hearing conference. (c)
 - (2) The clerk must, within three days after an order referred to in subregulation (1) is made—
- (a) assign a date for the pre-hearing conference, which must be within 10 days after the order was made; and
- (b) notify the parties involved on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 3 of the Annexure, of the date, place and time of the pre-hearing conference, and keep record of how the parties were notified.
 - (3) At a pre-hearing conference the chairperson of the pre-hearing conference must—
- give directions in respect of the conduct of the proceedings as he or she deems fit; and (a)
- (b) if a party is unrepresented, inform him or her of his or her right to be represented at his or her own expense by a legal representative of his or her own choice and if he or she cannot afford legal representation, that he or she may apply for legal aid, and of the institutions which he or she may approach for legal assistance.
- (4) The chairperson of a pre-hearing conference must, within five days after the conclusion of the pre-hearing conference, submit to the court a full written report of the pre-hearing conference, containing—
- any agreement reached between the parties; (a)



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts an... Page 8 of 47

- Polity
 - (b) any settlement reached between the parties;
 - (c) any matters to be dealt with by the court; and
 - (d) any other matter the chairperson deems necessary.
 - (5) If a party fails to attend a pre-hearing conference without any good cause, after having been notified thereof as provided for in subregulation (2)(b), the chairperson of the pre-hearing conference may-
 - proceed with the pre-hearing conference in the absence of that party; (a)
 - (b) postpone the pre-hearing conference if that party is likely to make a valuable contribution regarding the best interests of the child in question; or
 - (c) refer the matter back to the court for a hearing.

Family group conferences

- 13. (1) If a court orders that the matter must be referred to a family group conference as provided for in section 70 of the Act for mediation, the presiding officer of the court must appoint a person or organisation as provided for in subregulation (2), as facilitator of the family group conference.
- (2) The facilitator of a family group conference may be any suitably qualified person, including, but not limited to-
- a family advocate; (a)
- a social worker; (b)
- (c) a social service professional; or
- (d) a traditional leader.
- (3) On receipt of an order as provided for in regulation 6(2)(a)(i) the clerk must, within three days, in the manner determined by the court-
- refer the matter to the facilitator by means of a form which corresponds substantially with (a) Part A of Form 5 of the Annexure;
- submit all certified copies of all the relevant documentation relating to the matter, to the (b) facilitator;
- retain original documents relating to the matter; (c)
- (d) forward a copy of the referral to the parties; and
- notify the parties of the documents submitted to the facilitator. (e)
- (4) After a facilitator has received the documentation as provided for in subregulation (3), he or she must convene a family group conference within 10 days but not later than 15 days after receipt of the documentation by-
- setting the time, date and place of the conference; and (a)
- (b) taking steps to ensure that all persons entitled to attend the conference are notified within a reasonable time, of the time, date and place of the conference.
- (5) No notice referred to in subregulation (4)(b) needs be given to any person whose whereabouts, after reasonable enquiries, are unknown and failure to notify any person in accordance with that subregulation does not affect the validity of the proceedings of a family group conference.
- (6) Where a family group conference fails to take place on the time, date and place determined in terms of subregulation (4), the facilitator must arrange for an alternative date and notify the persons entitled to attend the family group conference accordingly.



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts an... Page 9 of 47

- **Polity**
 - (7) The facilitator must confer with the parties and endeavour to obtain an agreement or settlement in respect of the matter.
 - (8) Before entering into discussions at a family group conference, and subject to any directions given by the presiding officer of the court, the parties must decide whether the facilitator is to file-
 - (a) a full report on the conference, including anything that the facilitator considers to be relevant to the matter; or
 - (b) a report that either sets out any agreement reached by the parties or states only that the parties did not reach agreement on the matter.
 - (9) The report referred to in subregulation (8) and any agreement or settlement reached between the parties must be submitted to the clerk within 15 days after conclusion of the family group conference, who must submit it to the court for the court to make any agreement or settlement reached an order of the court.
 - (10) If a facilitator refers the matter back to the court for a hearing, that referral must be in writing on a form which corresponds substantially with Part B of Form 5 of the Annexure, stating the reasons why the matter was referred back.
 - (11) A court must, within five days from the date on which the matter was received back, order that the matter must be heard in court and the clerk must—
 - within three days after that order, assign a date for the matter to be heard in court; and (a)
 - (b) notify the parties involved in the matter on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 4 of the Annexure of the date, place and time of the hearing.

Lay forums

- 14. (1) If a court orders that the matter must be referred for mediation to a specified lay forum as provided for in section 71 of the Act, the clerk must, within three days of receipt of the order, in the manner determined by the court-
- refer the matter to a specific lay forum by means of a form which corresponds substantially (a) with Part A of Form 5 of the Annexure;
- (b) submit certified copies of all the relevant documentation relating to the matter, to the lay forum:
- retain original documents relating to the matter; (c)
- forward a copy of the referral to the parties; and (d)
- (e) notify the parties of the documents submitted to the lay forum.
- (2) After a lay forum has received the documentation referred to in subregulation (1), that lay forum must within five days, appoint a person to act as chairperson, who must arrange a meeting within 10 days but not later than 15 days after receipt of the documentation by the lay forum by-
- (a) setting the time, date and place of the meeting; and
- (b) taking steps to ensure that all persons entitled to attend the meeting are notified within a reasonable time, of the time, date and place of the meeting.
- (3) No notice referred to in subregulation (2)(b) need be given to any person whose whereabouts, after reasonable enquiries, are unknown and failure to notify any person in accordance with that subregulation does not affect the validity of the proceedings of a lay forum meeting.
- (4) Where a lay forum meeting fails to take place, the chairperson must arrange for an alternative date and notify the persons entitled to attend the lay forum meeting accordingly.
- (5) The chairperson of a lay forum must confer with the parties and endeavour to obtain an agreement or settlement.in respect of the matter.



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 10 of 47 **Polity**

(6) Before entering into discussions at a lay forum, the parties to that lay forum must, subject to any

directions given by the presiding officer of the court, decide whether the chairperson is to file-

- a full report of the meeting, including anything that the chairperson considers relevant to (a) the matter; or
- (b) a report that either sets out any agreement or settlement reached by the parties or states only that the parties did not reach agreement on the matter.
- (7) The report referred to in subregulation (6), together with any agreement or settlement reached by the lay forum, must be submitted to the clerk within 15 days after conclusion of the proceedings of the lay forum, who must submit it to the court for the court to make any agreement or settlement reached an order of the court.
- (8) If a lay forum refers the matter back to the court for a hearing, that referral must be in writing on a form which corresponds substantially with Part B of Form 5 of the Annexure, stating the reasons why the matter was referred back.
- (9) The court must, within five days from the date on which the matter was received back, order that the matter must be heard in court and the clerk must-
- within three days after that order, assign a date for the matter to be heard in court; and (a)
- (b) notify the parties involved in the matter on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 4 of the Annexure of the date, place and time of the hearing.

CHAPTER IV INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION

Application for return of child to the Republic

- 15. (1) An application for the return of a child under Article 8 of the Hague Convention from another contracting state to the Republic, must be in writing on a form that corresponds substantially with Form 10 of the Annexure.
 - (2) An application as provided for in subregulation (1) must be accompanied by—
- (a) recent photographs of the child and of the person alleged to have removed or retained the child:
- (b) a certified copy of the birth certificate of the child;
- proof of parental rights and responsibilities; (c)
- (d) a certified copy of the marriage certificate, where applicable;
- sworn translations of all the relevant documentation in English, if the documentation is in a (e) language other than English; and
- a sworn affidavit setting out the chronological exposition of events and circumstances (f) leading to the abduction of the child.
- (3) An application as provided for in subregulation (1) must be submitted to the Central Authority of the Republic, who must, within 48 hours of receipt thereof, forward it to the Central Authority of the country to which the child has been taken.

Access to child wrongfully removed or retained

- 16. (1) An application for access to a child wrongfully removed to the Republic or retained in the Republic must be-
- in writing on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 11 of the Annexure; and (a)
- (b) submitted to the office of any Family Advocate in the Republic, which must, without delay, submit the application to the office of the Chief Family Advocate.



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 11 of 47 Polity

(2) Upon receipt of the application as provided for in subregulation (1), the Chief Family Advocate must bring an application, within 15 days after the child has been located, to the High Court having

Application to return child to a contracting state

jurisdiction.

- 17. (1) If a child has been wrongfully removed to the Republic or retained in the Republic, the Central Authority of the Republic must—
- upon receipt of the documents from the other country's Central Authority, study the (a) application; and
- (b) within 10 days after the child has been located, bring an application to the High Court on behalf of the parent or person with parental rights and responsibilities from whom the child has been wrongfully removed, to have the child returned to his or her place of habitual residence.
- (2) An application for assistance made by an applicant to the Chief Family Advocate must, unless the contrary is proved, be deemed to constitute authorisation by the applicant for the Chief Family Advocate or a Family Advocate to exercise any power and perform any duty conferred or imposed on him or her under the Hague Convention, and to appear on the applicant's behalf in any proceedings that may be necessary under the Hague Convention.

Appointment of persons by Chief Family Advocate

- 18. (1) Where no Government department is able to grant the assistance sought or where the Chief Family Advocate considers it necessary to give effect to the provisions of the Haque Convention he or she may, subject to any condition he or she may deem appropriate, appoint any person to assist him or her, or a Family Advocate, to exercise any power or perform any duty conferred or imposed upon the Central Authority of the Republic under the Hague Convention.
- (2) The appointment referred to in subregulation (1) and any condition thereof must be in writing and a certified copy of the original appointment must be handed to the person concerned: Provided that in urgent cases the appointment may be made orally but must subsequently be confirmed in writing without delay.

Obstruction of Chief Family Advocate, Family Advocate or person appointed

19. Any person who hinders or obstructs the Chief Family Advocate, a Family Advocate or a person appointed by the Chief Family Advocate in terms of regulation 18 in the exercise of his or her powers or the performance of any duty conferred or imposed on him or her under the Hague Convention, the Act or these Regulations is guilty of an offence and is liable on conviction to a fine or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding 12 months.

Court appearances

- 20. The Chief Family Advocate or a Family Advocate must appear on behalf of an applicant in any court proceedings that may be necessary to give effect to the provisions of the Hague Convention, where the applicant does not—
- (a) qualify for legal aid in terms of the Legal Aid Act, 1969 (Act No. 22 of 1969), read with Article 25 of the Hague Convention; or
- (b) wish to appoint a legal representative of his or her choice.

Fees of person appointed by Chief Family Advocate

- 21. (1) Any person appointed in terms of regulation 18 who is not in the employ of the Public Service is entitled to the following fees for assistance thus rendered by him or her:
- Where he or she is a tracing agent or some other person appointed to locate a child or any (a) other person: an amount of not more than R500 if the child or other person is located; or



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 12 of 47 **Polity**

> report on the social background, living conditions or other circumstances of a child or to obtain any other information or to harbour, keep safe or escort a child and, for the purposes of rendering such assistance-

- (i) the transport allowance as prescribed from time to time for the Public Service; and
- (ii) if he or she is required to rent overnight accommodation or is absent for a period of 24 hours or longer from the city or town where he or she normally works or resides
 - the reasonable actual expenses incurred; or (aa)
 - (bb) the subsistence expenses as prescribed from time to time for the Public Service.
- (2) A person referred to in subregulation (1) must, when submitting a claim for actual real expenses incurred by him or her, submit the necessary receipts, vouchers or any other proof in support of his or her expenses to the Central Authority of the Republic, whose decision regarding the amounts payable in terms of this regulation is final.

Recovery of expenditure

- 22. (1) Where an application for the return of a child has been successful, the state may recover from the applicant the expenses incurred or to be incurred in bringing about the return of the child.
- (2) Where an application for the return of a child or for the right of access to a child has been successful and no order was made against the respondent to pay any of the expenses or costs incurred by or on behalf of the applicant, the State may recover those expenses or costs from the respondent.
- (3) Any expenses or costs recovered by the State in terms of subregulation (1) or (2) shall accrue to the National Revenue Fund.
- (4) Where an application for the return of a child or for the right of access to a child has been successful and an order was made against the respondent to pay any of the expenses or costs incurred by or on behalf of the applicant, those expenses, costs or fees shall accrue to the National Revenue Fund.

Expeditious handling of proceedings

- 23. (1) Proceedings for the return of a child under the Hague Convention must be completed within six weeks from the date on which judicial proceedings were instituted in a High Court, except where exceptional circumstances make this impossible.
- (2) The following procedural steps are intended to ensure that applications under the Hague Convention are handled expeditiously:
- (a) A High Court file must be clearly marked and must—
 - (i) draw attention to the nature of the application; and
 - (ii) state the date on which the six week period will expire;
- priority must, where necessary, be given to these applications; (b)
- the transcript of the judgment and its approval must be expedited; and (c)
- (d) the transcript of the judgment and its approval must be sent to the Central Authority of the Republic without delay.

Procedure in High Court

24. Where an application has been made to a High Court by the Central Authority of the Republic under the Hague Convention, that Court may, at any time before the application is determined, give any interim direction that it deems fit in order to regulate any aspect of the progress of an application under



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 13 of 47 **Polity**

the Hague Convention and to ensure the welfare of the child in question and to prevent any changes in the circumstances relevant to the determination of the application.

Declarations by High Court

25. A High Court may, on an application made for the purposes of Article 15 of the Hague Convention by any person appearing to that Court to have an interest in the matter, make a declaration that the removal of any child from, or his or her retention outside the Republic, was wrongful within the meaning of Article 3 of the Hague Convention.

Proof of documents and evidence

- 26. (1) For the purposes of Article 14 of the Hague Convention a decision or determination of a judicial or administrative authority of a country outside the Republic may be proved by a duly authenticated copy of the decision or determination and any document purporting to be such a copy is deemed to be a true copy, unless the contrary is shown.
- (2) For the purposes of subregulation (1), a copy is duly authenticated if it bears the Seal of that country, or is signed by a judge or an officer of the authority in question.
- (3) For the purposes of Articles 14 and 30 of the Hague Convention, any document as is mentioned in Article 8 of the Haque Convention, or a certified copy of any such document, is sufficient evidence of anything stated in it.

Power to order disclosure of child's whereabouts

- 27. (1) Where in proceedings for the return of a child there is no adequate information available regarding the whereabouts of the child, the High Court may order any person whom it has reason to believe may have relevant information, to disclose it to the Court.
- (2) A person may not be excused from complying with an order under subregulation (1) by reason that to do so may incriminate him or her or his or her spouse.

Evidence in support of application

- 28. If a party making an application in terms of this Chapter, does not produce the relevant documents a High Court may-
- (a) fix a time within which the documents are to be produced;
- (b) accept equivalent documents; or
- dispense with production of the documents. (c)

Response

- 29. (1) Subject to subregulation (2), a respondent must file and serve on the parties a response to an application within five days, beginning with the date on which the application is served.
- (2) A High Court may direct a period longer than that provided for in subregulation (1) for service where the respondent has been made a party if he or she appears to that Court to have sufficient interest in the welfare of the child.
- (3) The applicant may, within five days, beginning with the date on which a respondent's response is served on him or her, file and serve a statement in reply.

Adjournment

30. A High Court may not adjourn court proceedings to give effect to the Hague Convention for more than 15 days at any one time.

Assistance to prevent removal from jurisdiction

31. (1) If a parent, guardian or person with parental responsibility of a child suspects that there is an imminent danger or a likelihood that the



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 14 of 47 Polity

child may be wrongfully removed from the Republic, that parent, guardian or person with parental responsibility must immediately inform the Central Authority of the Republic of that danger or likelihood who must-

- in the case of an imminent danger of wrongful removal, request the assistance of the South (a) African Police Service to
 - inform border posts directly when there is a real and imminent threat that a (i) child is about to be removed unlawfully from the Republic; and
 - (ii) liaise with Immigration Officers at the border posts in an attempt to identify the child at risk of removal; or
- (b) in the case of a likelihood of wrongful removal, request the Department of Home Affairs not to issue a passport in respect of the child without—
 - (i) a High Court's permission; or
 - (ii) the consent of the other parent, guardian or person with parental responsibility.
- (2) A request for police assistance as provided for in subregulation (1)(a) must be accompanied by the following information—
- the name, gender, date of birth, physical description, nationality and passport number of (a) the child;
- the name, age, physical description, nationality, passport number and relationship of the (b) person to the child, who is likely to remove the child;
- whether the child is likely to assist the person likely to remove him or her; (c)
- (d) the name and contact details of the person at the Central Authority of the Republic who is requesting the border post alert referred to in subregulation (1)(a);
- the destination to which the child is likely to be removed; (e)
- (f) the likely time of travel and border post embarkation;
- (g) the grounds for the border post alert referred to in subregulation (1)(a); and
- (h) the details of the person to whom the child should be returned if he or she is intercepted.
- (3) If a border post is alerted to the danger of a wrongful removal of a child from the Republic, the child's name must be listed and must

remain on that list for four weeks, after which it may be removed, unless a further request of a similar nature is made.

Surrender of passport documents

- **32.** Where a High Court grants an order restraining the removal of a child from the Court's jurisdiction and the child or potential abductor holds a South African passport, the Court may—
- (a) order the surrender of any passport issued to, or which contains particulars of, that child; and
- (b) notify the Department of Home Affairs in every case in which the surrender of a South African passport has been ordered, to prevent the re-issue of such a passport.

CHAPTER V MISCELLANEOUS

Keeping of records

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 15 of 47

- **Polity**
 - **33.** (1) (a) A court is a court or record and proceedings before it in terms of section 57 of the Act must be recorded verbatim, in narrative form or by mechanical means.
 - (b) Despite paragraph (a), a court must, in respect of each matter before it, record the information indicated in Form 17 of the Annexure in so far as it is applicable.
 - (2) (a) The record of proceedings includes any judgment handed down or ruling or order made by the court, any viva voce evidence given in court, any exception taken or objection made to any evidence received or tendered and the proceedings of the court generally, including the addresses of any of the parties or the record of any inspection in loco.
 - (b) The court must mark each document submitted as evidence and note that mark on the record.
 - (3) Rule 30(5) to (12) of the Rules of Court made under the Magistrates' Courts Act, 1944 (Act No. 32 of 1944), applies with the changes

required by the context and in so far as it is applicable in respect of the transcription of any court records and copies thereof.

- (4) A record of proceedings may only be disposed of after the expiry of—
- (a) a period of 10 years since the date of finalisation of the matter in question; or
- (b) a period of three years after a contribution order was made, in the case of records relating to contribution orders.
 - (5) Any party to the proceedings may have access to that record of proceedings—
- (a) during office hours at the court where the matter was dealt with; and
- (b) under the supervision of the clerk.
- (6) Any person, other that a party to the proceedings, may in writing apply to the presiding officer of the court where the matter was dealt with, to have access to the record of proceedings, stating reasons why access should be granted.
 - (7) The presiding officer of the court may—
- (a) refuse access to the record of proceedings; or
- (b) grant access to record of proceedings, or any part thereof—
 - (i) during office hours at the court where the matter was dealt with;
 - (ii) under the supervision of the clerk;
 - (iii) against payment of the amount, as amended from time to time, prescribed in terms of section 7 of the Magistrates' Courts Act, 1944 (Act No. 32 of 1944);
 - (iv) on any other conditions he or she may determine;
- (8) Notwithstanding the provisions of subregulation (7), a presiding officer of the court may give approval in a specific case for the record of proceedings to be accessible free of charge—
- (a) for official or research purposes; and
- for the purpose of publishing a report on the proceedings in a publication which is intended (b) to be read mainly by social workers, probation officers, medical practitioners, dentists, child and youth care workers, nurses, psychologists, educationists, lawyers, criminologists, jurists or members of any other relevant profession.

Submission of statistics to Magistrates Commission

34. (1) Each regional head must, when preparing quarterly reports on the Implementation of the Medium Term Strategic Framework of the Department (MTSF), include in his or her implementation

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 16 of 47 **Polity**

report, on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 18 of the Annexure, statistics as indicated in Form 18.

(2) The Director-General must, as soon as possible after receipt of the reports referred to in subregulation (1), consolidate the statistics in question and make them available to the Magistrates Commission in accordance with Form 18 of the Annexure.

Remuneration of persons not in employ of state

- 35. (1) The remuneration paid to persons not in the employ of the state as provided for in section 75(1)(j) of the Act must be paid by the state if the person acted by direction of the court.
- (2) A person referred to in subregulation (1) is entitled to the following remuneration for each 24 hours or part thereof for which that person is absent from his or her residence or place of sojourn:
- The reasonable actual expenses if it is necessary to hire accommodation for the night; and (a)
- (b) (i) R200; or
 - (ii) the reasonable actual expenses incurred for meals on submission of proof of the expenses to the satisfaction of the court manager.
- (3) The remuneration provided for in subregulation (2) is payable for the full period for which the person referred to in subregulation (1) is absent from his or her residence or place of sojourn.
- (4) In calculating the period of absence for purposes of subregulation (2), a person referred to in subregulation (1) is allowed 24 hours for each distance of 300 kilometres or part thereof travelled.
- (5) The remuneration provided for in subregulation (2) is not payable if the fare of a person referred to in subregulation (1) includes the cost of meals and accommodation.
- (6) A person referred to in subregulation (1) may claim his or her actual real travel expenses: Provided that he or she may only use air transport at state expense only if the magistrate's court manager-
- is satisfied that the use thereof is warranted; and (a)
- (b) has approved that the person may make use of air transport.
- (7) On satisfactory proof having been produced, a person referred to in subregulation (1) is entitled to be reimbursed for his or her reasonable actual expenses incurred in respect of parking and toll fees.
- (8) A magistrate's court manager may, at the written request of a person referred to in subregulation (1), and on receipt of satisfactory proof from that person that he or she has suffered loss of earnings as a result of his or her assistance in a matter as provided for in section 49, 50, 62, 69, 70 or 71 of the Act, by direction of a court, order that the person be paid an amount equal to the actual loss of earnings he or she suffered, but not exceeding R2 500 per day, in addition to any other amount to which he or she is entitled under this regulation.
- (9) If a person referred to in subregulation (1) is required to submit a professional report to the court, he or she is entitled to an amount determined by the magistrate's court manager, which may not exceed R500.
- (10) The Director-General may authorise a deviation from the amounts provided for in subregulations (8) and (9), on the written request of a person referred to in subregulation (1), supporting his or her request by proof, to the satisfaction of the Director-General.
- (11) The remuneration paid to a person not in the employ of the state as provided for in section 75 (1)(j) of the Act must be paid by a party if the person acted at the request of that party, which amount will be an amount agreed upon by the party and the person not in the employ of the state.

Contribution orders

36. (1) A clerk must, at the request of the presiding officer of the court, issue a summons on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 12 of the Annexure, calling on a respondent to appear before the court at a time and place stated in the summons in order to show cause why a contribution or

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 17 of 47 Polity

attachment of wages order should not be made against him or her, as provided for in section 161 of the Act.

- (2) (a) A notice of an application by a presiding officer of the court for the variation, suspension, rescission or revival of a contribution or attachment of wages order shall be on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 13 of the Annexure and must be duly served on the respondent.
- (b) An application by a respondent for the variation, suspension, rescission or revival of a contribution or attachment of wages order shall be made on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 14 of the Annexure, and shall be lodged with the clerk or the presiding officer of the court, as the case may be.
- (3) A summons referred to in subregulation (1) and a notice referred to in subregulation (2)(a) shall be-
- (a) served personally on a person by a sheriff, clerk, or a person authorised by the presiding officer of the court;
- (b) submitted to the person by registered post; or
- (c) served or submitted in any other manner as directed by a presiding officer of the court.
- (4) A contribution order or a provisional contribution order shall be made on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 15 of the Annexure, and a certified copy thereof shall be handed to the respondent or be sent to him or her by registered mail.
 - (5) The clerk shall send a copy of the said contribution order to—
- (a) the Director-General: Social Development; and
- (b) the social worker involved in the case.
- (6) An order to an employer in terms of section 165 of the Act for the deduction of an amount from the wages of respondent in compliance

with a contribution order shall be made on a form which corresponds substantially with Form 16 of the Annexure and a certified copy thereof shall be handed to the respondent or be sent to him or her by registered mail by the clerk.

Patent errors

37. A court may, upon the application by any person affected by a decision of that court, or of its own accord, correct patent errors in any ruling in respect of which no appeal is pending.

Offences and penalties

38. Any person who submits false information, fails to submit any information if so required, or who does not adhere to a direction in terms of a provision of these Regulations is guilty of an offence and is on conviction liable to a fine or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding twelve months or to both such fine and imprisonment.

Short title and commencement

39. These regulations are called the Regulations relating to Children's Courts and International Child Abduction, 2010 and shall come into operation on 1 April 2010.

ANNEXURE

FORM 1

REGISTER REGARDING MATTERS BROUGHT TO THE CHILDREN'S COURT IN TERMS OF SECTION 53 OF THE CHILDREN'S ACT, 2005 (ACT NO. 38 OF 2005)

REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 18 of 47 **Polity**

[Regulation 5]

File number:							Entry made by (name of	Date	Signature
					- 14 4 7 7 7 7		clerk):		
- II () C					E MATTEI	٠ ر)F:		
Full name(s) of	_		Chilo						
child(ren)	1								
	2								
	3								
	4								
			Child						
Date of birth	1								
	2								
	3								
	4								
			Child						
Gender	1								
	2								
	3								
	4								
					AND:				
Full names of									
parents/care-									
givers/guardians									
			PART	ICUL	ARS OF I	MA	TTER;		
Date									
notice/application									
is received									
Reason for									
notice/application									
Presiding officer									
Referred: (Pre-	Yes		No						
hearing									
conference/Family									
group	To:								
conference/other									
lay forum)									
Date referred:									
Referred back to									
court:									
Date Received									
back:									
Date of hearing:									
Outcome									
reached:									
Date reached:		_							
Contribution	Made		Not		Inder				
orders:			made		onside-				
made/not				r	ation				
made/considered:		\perp		$\sqcup \!\!\!\! \perp$					
Contribution	Made		Not		Pate				
orders under			made	n	nade/not				

FORM 2

BRINGING MATTER TO CHILDREN'S COURT IN TERMS OF SECTION 53 OF THE CHILDREN'S ACT, 2005 (ACT NO. 38 OF 2005)

REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010

[Regulation 6]

Note:

	No: R. 250 Title:	: Children's Act (38	3/2005): Regulatic	ons relating to c	children's courts	Page 19 of 47
Po	lity	,	, 6	Č		C

1.	ffidavits of other persons or other documentary evidence in support of the
	natter must be attached.

2. Your attention is drawn to the fact that the children's court may adjudicate the matter, refer the matter for mediation to a lay-forum or refer the matter for a family group conference. If the matter is referred back to the children's court the clerk will inform you accordingly.

Fil	Δ	Nο	•	

[If the space provided for in this Form is inadequate, submit information as an Annexure to this Form and sign each page.]

				PAR1	ΓICU	PA LARS	RT A		D(RE	N)				
Surname:									`					
Child 1		Full names: (state surname of each child as well if surnames are not similar)							Gender					
Child 2														
Child 3														
Child 4														
Child 5														
Child 1						ID). No	./Da	te of	birt	h:			•
														//_
Child 2														//
Child 3														/ /
Child 4														//
Child 5						 ential								//
(If the address	es are	e not	the s	same	for e		hild p age.)	lease	indi	cate	the a	ddres	ses c	on a separa
(If the number	rs are	e not	the s			pa	age.)			cate	the n	umbe	ers oi	n a separati
CI II I				C	ellula	ar nu	mbe	r:(if a	any)					
Child 1 Child 2														
Child 3														
Child 4														
Child 5														
(If the address														on a separa
														Code (
Other relevan the manner i (such as financion be ne	n wh	i ch t sition	t he n , ava	natte Act, 2 ilabili	er cou 2005 ity of	uld be (Act	est b : No, :port,	e de: 38 o socio	alt w f 20 0	ith i i)5) nomi	n ter i	ms o	f the	Children's
PARTICULARS MATT□R/PERS						IS		ECTE						

relating to children's courts... Page 20 of 47

	No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulation	ons r
Pol	V a. za	

	IN HIS/HER OWN NAME/ *MEMBER OF A GROUP OF CLASS BLIC INTEREST (SECTION 53(2))
Surname:	BLIC INTEREST (SECTION 55(2))
Full names:	
ID. No./Date of birth:	
Capacity or relationship of	
person acting in terms of	
section 53(2):	
Registration number of	
corporate body (if applicable)	
Residential address:	
	Code ()
Phone number(h):	()
Cellular phone number:	
'Business address:	
Business address:	
	Code()
Phone number(b):	()
Fax number	
Physical address: (where	
documents can be served)	
documents can be served)	
	Code()
E-mail address:	
	PART C
PARTICULARS O	F PERSONS HAVING AN INTEREST IN THE MATER
Surname:	
Full names:	
ID. No./Date of birth:	
Capacity of person acting in	
terms of section 53(2)(b)-(e).	
Registration number of	
corporate body: (if applicable))
Residential address (if	
applicable):	
	Code ()
Phone number(h):	
	- \
Cellular phone number:	
Business address:	
	Code (
Phone number(b):	()
Fax number:	
	//
Physical address (where	
documents can be served):	
	Code ()
E-mail address:	
	PART D:
	PARTICULARS OP MATTER
Nature of matter brought to	
court: (Please give full	
details of the matter e.g.,	
registration/amendment of	
parenting plans, removal of	
child to safe care, children in	
need of care and protection,	
placement in youth care	
centers, adoption etc.)	
	i

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 21 of 47

	Documents: Are there any					
	documents relating to the matter? (If so please					
	attach):					
igned a	tthisday of	_20				
ignatur	e/thumbprint/mark of pers	son bringing th	ne matter	to court		
ull nam	es of person witnessing pe	erson who mad	de a thuml	pprint/m	ark	
ignatur	e of witness to thumbprint	/mark				
N					IFERENCE IN TERMS OF TH OF 2005)	E
REGULA	ATIONS RELATING TO C		OURTS A 2010 Julation 12		ERNATIONAL CHILD ABDU	CTIO
					File N	No:
		REPUBLIC C	OF SOUTH	AFRIC	Α	
HE CH	ILDREN'S COURT FOR T	HE DISTRICT	OF:			
IELD A	Г:					
		IN TH	HE MATTER	₹:		
	FULL NAME(S) OF CH		GENI		ID NUMBERS/DATE OF	
	. ,				BIRTH	
		C	hild(ren)			
			AND			
	NAME(S) OF OTH	ER PARTY(IES	5)	ID N	JMBER(S)/DATE OF BIRTH	
		Other par	rty(ies) inv	volved		
O:						
•						
ADDRES	SS:					

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 22 of 47

YOU ARE HEREBY REQUIRED:			
To attend a pre-hearing conference aton the day that may be required, regarding the following		_attime) and on any su	bsequent
			- -
			- -
			- -
			<u>.</u>
Dated atthisday of20			
Clerk of the children's court			
NOTICE TO ATTEND PROCEEDINGS OF THE C THE CHILDREN'S ACT,			N 57 OF
	OURTS AND IN 2010 ulation 7)]	TERNATIONAL CHILD ABDU	JCTION,
		File	No:
REPUBLIC O	F SOUTH AFRI	CA	
IN THE CHILDREN'S COURT FOR THE DISTRI	CT OF:		
HELD AT:			
FULL NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN)	REN): GENDER	ID NUMBERS / DATE OF	1
FOLL NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN)	GENDER	ID NUMBERS/DATE OF BIRTH	
TO: (a party in the matter before the children matter/a person who has another interest in the r		y member of a child involve	ed in the
ADDRESS:			
YOU ARE HEREBY REQUIRED:			
To appear before this court aton thedather court thereafter requires, in respect of the matter:			
ATTENDANCE OF CHILDREN REQUIRED:			
YES	NO		
TO THE PERSONS WHO ARE HEREBY GIVEN I	NOTICE:		

	attendar	nce until its conclusion or until excused by the court.
(2)		st bring the said child (ren) before the court at the abovementioned time and pl otherwise directed.
(3)	If you fa	il to attend the proceedings or to remain in attendance during the proceedings,
	court ma	
	(a)	issue a warrant for your arrest and in a summary manner inquire into stailure to attend or remain in attendance and, unless you satisfy the court your failure was not due to fault on your part, sentence you to a fine comprisonment; and
	(b)	order you to pay any costs.
(4)	Should le	egal representation be required it is recommended that this be arranged timeou
(5)	you wisl particula the clerk service	st ensure that all your witnesses are present at the proceedings of the hearing in any witness to be subpoenaed by the court, you are requested to submit ars of the witnesses (i.e. full names, identity numbers and physical addresses of the court, within fourteen days before the date of the hearing. The costs of the subpoena of any witness will be borne by the person who requests a unless, in exceptional cases, the court directs that the state bears such costs.
(6)	Your atte	ention is drawn to the fact that the court may decide to—
	(a)	refer the matter to a family group conference or a lay-forum for mediation that the matter may be referred back to the children's court for a hearing;
	(b)	hold a pre-hearing conference; or
	(c)	hear the matter.
Signed at	this	day of20
	this he children'	
		's court
		s court PLEASE SEE REVERSE HEREOF
Clerk of th		PLEASE SEE REVERSE HEREOF REVERSE OF FORM 4 RETURN OF SERVICE FOR OFFICIAL PURPOSES ONLY
Clerk of th	he children'	PLEASE SEE REVERSE HEREOF REVERSE OF FORM 4 RETURN OF SERVICE FOR OFFICIAL PURPOSES ONLY
Clerk of th	he children'	PLEASE SEE REVERSE HEREOF REVERSE OF FORM 4 RETURN OF SERVICE FOR OFFICIAL PURPOSES ONLY I have—
Clerk of th	he children'	PLEASE SEE REVERSE HEREOF REVERSE OF FORM 4 RETURN OF SERVICE FOR OFFICIAL PURPOSES ONLY I have— delivered a copy of the notice to personally; or offered a copy of the notice to a person apparently not younger than age of 16 years and apparently residing or employed at the *residence/p of employment/place of business of, since he/she could not convenience.
Clerk of th	he children' certify that	PLEASE SEE REVERSE HEREOF REVERSE OF FORM 4 RETURN OF SERVICE FOR OFFICIAL PURPOSES ONLY I have— delivered a copy of the notice to personally; or offered a copy of the notice to a person apparently not younger than age of 16 years and apparently residing or employed at the *residence/p of employment/place of business of, since he/she could not convenie be found and at the same time informing him/her of the nature and exige

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 24 of 47

	e of sheriff/clerk of the children's court/ outhorised by presiding officer of the child	ren's coui	t		
Full first	names and surname				
	(Bloc	ck letters))		
Designat	cion (rank)Ex Officio Republic of So	uth Africa	a. Busin	ess addressCode	
	(Street addres	ss must b	e stated	d)	
RE	FERRAL OF MATTER TO *FAMILY GRO SECTIONS 70 AND 71 OF THE CHILD			=	OF
REGULA	ATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S CO :	OURTS AI 2010	ND INT	ERNATIONAL CHILD ABDU	ICTION,
	[Regulatio		d 14]		
				File r	no
	REPUBLIC O	F SOUTH	AFRIC	CA	
	A REFERRAL TO 'FAMILY GROUP CON	FERENCE	/*LAY F	FORUM	
I,,	_presiding officer of the children's court a	tIn	the ma	atter between:	
	FULL NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN)	GENE	DER	ID NUMBERS/DATE OF BIRTH	
	Ch	ild(ren)			
		AND			
	NAME(S) OF OTHER PARTY(IES)		ID N	UMBER(S)/DATE OF BIRTH	
	Other part	cv(ies) inv	olved		
	refer the matter in terms of section *70/7 group conference/lay-forum:			n's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2	005) *to
a ranniny					
(name a	address, tel. no of facilitator/lay-forum)				
	for referral:				
. (Cu30113	io. reletium				

Signed at____this____day of____20____ Presiding officer of the children's court REFERRAL OF MATTER TO CHILDREN'S COURT I, _____in my capacity as facilitator of the family group conference/chairperson of the lay- forum held at _____on____, to which the abovementioned matter was referred, hereby refer the matter back to the children's court for the following reasons: Signed at this day of 20 *Facilitator: Family Group Conference/Chairperson: Lay-forum FORM 6 SUBPOENA TO WITNESS TO APPEAR BEFORE THE CHILDREN'S COURT IN TERMS OF SECTION 59 OF THE CHILDREN'S ACT, 2005 (ACT NO. 38 OF 2005) REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010 [Regulation 9] File No.: _____ **REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA** IN THE CHILDREN'S COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF: **HELD AT:** In the matter of an inquiry in terms of section 59 of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005), in connection with the following child(ren): NAME(S)OF CHILD(REN) **GENDER DATE OF BIRTH** TO: **ADDRESS:** 1. You are hereby required to appear as a witness before the court at the request of: (a) The presiding officer of the court of the court. _ The child or a person whose rights may be affected by an order of the court. _ (b)

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 25 of 47

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 26 of 47 Polity (c) The legal representative of a person referred to in (b). _ 2. You are hereby further required: to appear before this court at _____on the _____day of ____at ____(time) and on any (a) subsequent day to which the hearing may be postponed to give evidence at this produce the following books or documents: (b) (i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) Dated at _____this _____day of _____20_ Clerk of the children's court NOTE: A person subpoenaed by the court and who complies with the subpoena is entitled to witness fees from state funds. A person subpoenaed at the request of the child or a person whose rights may be affected by an order of the court, or the legal representative of the child or a person whose rights may be affected by an order of the court, is not entitled to witness fees from state funds, except if the presiding officer of the court so orders. If you fail to obey this subpoena, a warrant for your arrest may be issued and, unless you can satisfy the court that your failure was not due to fault on your part you may be sentenced to a fine or to imprisonment. PLEASE SEE REVERSE HEREOF **REVERSE OF FORM 6 RETURN OF SERVICE** FOR OFFICIAL PURPOSES ONLY I, ____, certify that I have delivered a copy of the subpoena to _____personally; or offered a copy of the subpoena to____a person apparently not younger than the age of 16 years and apparently residing or employed at the *residence/place of employment/place of business of____since he/she could not conveniently be found and at the same time informing him/her of the nature and exigency thereof; or *affixed/placed a copy of the subpoena to/in the *outer/principal door/security gate/post box of the *residence/place of employment/place of business prevented since he/she the service by keeping

his/her*residence/place of employment/place of business closed.

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 27 of 47

Signed atthisday of20								
Signature of sheriff/clerk of the children's court/ person authorised by presiding officer of the children's court								
Full first names and surname								
(Block letters)								
Designation (rank)Ex Officio Republic of South Africa								
Business addressCode								

(Street address must be stated)

FORM 7

MEDICAL REPORT AND AGE ASSESSMENT OF CHILD IN TERMS OF SECTION 48(2) OF THE **CHILDREN'S ACT, 2005 (ACT NO. 38 OF 2005)**

REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION,

[Regulation 10(2)]

MEDICAL REPORT OF PERSON WHOSE AGE IS ESTIMATED Α.

I				PERSON/	L PART	ICULA	RS			
Surna	me:			. 1.1.50117						
	ames:									
Gende										
Reside										
addre		-								
addic	55.									
									Code ()
Phone	number	(_)						•	
(h):			_,							
II				MEDICA	L PARTI	CULAF	RS			
					Ge	eneral				
Heigh	t:					Weig	ıht:			
				Cond	ition of					
Lungs	:									
Heart										
Teeth	:									
		1	Appa	rent impairm	ent: Ind	icate d	dearee			
Sight:										
Hearin										
Speed										
	paedic:									
	logical:									
	ectual:									
		•		Ot	ther					
Presei	nce of	Yes	No	Presence of	Yes	No	Presence	Yes	No	
			 	any			of any			
				infections:			injuries:			
If 'Yes	s' to									
presei	nce of any									
diseas										
	ion/injury,									
specif										
	,									
Physic	cal	No	rmal	Abnormal		If	abnormal:	specify		
develo	opment									
accord	ding to									
*his/h	ner age:									

of 47

No: R. 250 7	Fitle: Children's Act (38/20	1005): Regulations relating to children's	s courts Page 28
Polity	`	, 2	C

	Nutrition:	Adequate	Deficient	If deficient: specify
	W		_	75 10 10 15
	Vaccinations:	Yes	No	If 'No': Specify
	Substance	Yes	No	If 'Yes': Specify
	abuse:			. ,
	Other observations:	Yes	No	If 'Yes': Specify
	Medical or other	Yes	No	If 'Yes': Specify
	treatment required or	103	110	Ti Test Specify
	recommended:			
Date	Place			
 Medical	Practitioner			
				D.S. Ref No.:_
	В.	MEDICAL AS	SSESSMENT O	F AGE
	Surname: Full names:			
	Tui numes.		ASSESN	1ENT
	Height:			
	Weight: Breasts:			
	Molar teeth:			
	Pubic hair:			
	Auxiliary:			
	Facial:			
	Genitals:			
OPINI	ON			
On the his/her-		ove-examina	tion, and *his/	her general appearance, dressed and undress
(a)	age is assess	sed at being b	oetweena	ndMost probable age;
(b)	possible date	e of birth, tak	ing the above-r	mentioned into account, could be:
REMAR	RKS:			

DatePlace		
 Medical Practitioner		
C	FORM 8 OURT CERTIFICATE OF ESTIMATED	AGE OF CHILD
REGULATIONS RELATI	NG TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND IN 2010	TERNATIONAL CHILD ABD
	[Regulation 10(5)]	File N
	REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFR	ICA
	CONFIDENTIAL	
IN THE CHILDREN'S CO	OURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF:	
HELD AT:		
TO: DEPARTMENT OF HO	ME AFFAIRS	
	CERTIFICATE	
	nat the *age(s) of the *child(ren) re as indicated by the corresponding *da	
NAME	GENDER	DATE
The estimate was made i	in terms of section 48(2) of the Childr	on's Act 2005 (Act No 29 of
the purposes of *a childre	en's court inquiry/adoption proceedings on sufficient evidence available.	
——— Date		

This document is not an official birth certificate.

FORM 9

ORDER OF A CHILDREN'S COURT TO CARRY OUT AN INVESTIGATION IN TERMS OF SECTION **50 OF THE CHILDREN'S ACT, 2005 (ACT NO. 38 OF 2005)**

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 30 of 47

REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010

[Regulation 11]

				File No.:	
	REPUBLIC O	F SOUTH	l AFRIC	CA	
IN THE	CHILDREN'S COURT FOR THE DISTRIC	CT OF:			
HELD A	Т:				
	IN THI	E MATTEI	R:		
	FULL NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN)	GENI	DER	ID NUMBERS/DATE OF BIRTH	
		(ren) ANI			
	NAME(S) OF OTHER PARTY(IES)		ID N	UMBER(S)/DATE OF BIRTH	
			-		
	Other part	ty(ies) in	volved		
TO:					
ADDRES	SS:				
	E HEREBY ORDERED:				
-	out an investigation or further investigati provided for in section 50 of the Children'		-		r at
Regulati specified	sh this court with a report and a recomrons relating to Children's Courts and Intology in regulation 11 (6) of the Regulations on, 2009.	ernationa	l Child	Abduction, 2009 within the period	d as
Signed a	atthisday of20				
Presiding	g officer of the children's court				

FORM 10

APPLICATION FOR THE RETURN OF A CHILD WRONGFULLY REMOVED/RETAINED IN TERMS OF THE HAGUE CONVENTION ON THE CIVIL ASPECTS OF INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 31 of 47 **Polity**

REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010

[Regulation 15]

REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

																			File
Α						DET#	ILS	OF 1	HE	E AP	PLI	CAI	NT						
Surna	me:																		
Full na	ames:																		
Identi	ty number/																/	/	
	of birth																,	•	
Nation								-											
Occup																			
Relation	onship to																		
child:																			
Reside																			
addre	SS:																		
	number(h):	()															
Busine	ess address:																		
	nurnber(b):	<u> </u>)	-		-				,				1				
	ar number:			<u> </u>															
	umber:	()															
E-mai	l address:																		
В		1)ET	AILS	OF 1	HE /	١T٦	TOR	NΕ	(II	FAN	IY)					
Name	and																		
surnai	me:																		
Name	of firm:																		
Busine	ess address:																		
																	Co	de (_	
Phone	number.	()															
Fax nı	umber:	()															
С								AILS											
			(if	mo	re th	nan o	ne ch	rild, d	con	tinu	e or	sep	oarat	te pa	ige)				
Surna	me:																		
Full na	ames:																		
Identi	ty Number/														I			/ /	,
	of birth:																		
Place	of birth:																		
Count	ry of habitual																		
reside																			
	ediately																		
	removal)																		
	te whether													1					
	nolds his/her								1										
	assport or if		0	wn	Pass	port			М	1oth	er's	Pass	sport	-			Fath		
	s included on		J						۱ ٔ ٔ								Pass	port	
mothe																			
	's passport:		_			1	_	Ц_	Ц,						!	-		1	\perp L
	ort number										\perp	\perp			\perp				
Nation																			
	cal description																		
	d: <i>(please</i>																		
	se a recent																		
photo	graph)																		
1																			

NO. K	
n _ l:	
Polity	
oza	

_			
-			
D	DET	AILS OF PARENTS	
I. MOTHER	DEI	II. FATHER	
Surname:		Surname:	
Full names:		Full names:	
Identity number/		Identity number/	
Date of birth:		Date of birth:	
Passport number:		Passport number:	
Nationality:		Nationality:	
Habitual residence:		Habitual residence:	
	Code ()		Code <u>(</u>)
Phone number(h):	<u>()</u>	Phone number(h):	()
Cellular number		Cellular number	
E-mail address:		E-mail address:	
Occupation:		Occupation:	
Business address:		Business address:	
	Code()		Cada()
Discussion of the surflex of	Code()	Discussion of the surflex of	Code()
Phone number(b):	()	Phone number(b):	(
Fax number: III. DETAILS OF MA	ADDIACE	Fax number:	
	AKKIAGE	Diago of marriago	
Date of marriage: Date of divorce:		Place of marriage: Place of divorce: (if	
(if applicable)		applicable)	
	PERSON WHO HAS TAI		HII D
Surname:	TERSON WITO TIAS TAI	CENT ON NETATIVED C	
Full names:			
Identity number/			
Date of birth:			
Passport number			
Nationality:			
Occupation:			
Relationship to			
child:			
Physical description			
of person: (please			
enclose a recent			
photograph)			
Last las suus	1		
Last known residential address:			
(in the country in			
which this person			
now resides)			
Last known	()		
residential phone	()		
number: (in the			
country in which			
this person now			
resides)			
Last known business			
address: (in the			
country in which			
this person now			
resides)			

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 33 of 47

Last known busine	ss ()								
telephone number:									
(in the country in									
which this person									
now resides)									
				1				1	
Last known cellulai									
number:									
Last known fax	()								
number: (in the									
country in which									
this person now									
resides)									
Last known e-mail									
address: (in the									
country in which									
this person now									
resides)									
F	PLAC	E WHERE	THE CH	ILD IS	THOUG	нт то	BE		
Present address of									
the child if differen									
to those of the									
person who has									
taken the child:									
taken the child:									
Details of other									
persons in the									
country to which th	ne 🖯								
child has been take									
who might be able									
to supply additiona	11								
information on the									
whereabouts of the									
child; (e.g. names,									
address, telephone									
numbers,									
relationship to the									
child or taker of the	e								
child)									
G BRIEF D	ETAILS OF T	LE TIME	DATE D	DI ACE /	ND CT	DCIIMS	TANCE	S OE TI	46
REMOVAL O									
REMOVALO	L THE CHILL	FROM IF			KINE	KEIEN	I TON O	r inc	CHILD
			ABRO	JAU					
-									
н	DETAILS (OF COURT	PROCE	EDINGS	THAT	HAVE :	TAKEN	PLACE	/ARE
				AKING		-			
	(Provide de	etails of n		_	_	e of cou	ırt. cəs	e num	ber (if
	, ovide de		own) ai					uiiii	(11
		KII	ovii) di	ia tile s	staye r	Cacifed	/		
The Republic:									
1									

Outside the Republic: **EVIDENCE THAT THE APPLICANT HAD RIGHTS OF CUSTODY IN RESPECT OF THE** CHILD AND WAS EXERCISING THOSE RIGHTS AT THE TIME OF THE REMOVAL OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION Please indicate whether the applicant is prepared to travel to the country to YES NO which the child has been taken, both to attend the court hearing if necessary, and to collect the child should the application be successful or indicate any other person who could do so on their behalf: Does the applicant wish an application to be made to overseas court for an YES NO order to be made that the person who has taken the child meet any additional costs incurred by them e.g. air fares (Hague Convention on the Civil Aspects of International Child Abduction only): Signature of applicant or his or her attorney Signature and date stamp of the Central Authority of the Republic **FORM 11** APPLICATION FOR ACCESS TO A CHILD WRONGFULLY REMOVED/RETAINED IN TERMS OF THE HAGUE CONVENTION ON THE CIVIL ASPECTS OF INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010 [Regulation 16(1)] REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA File No:__ **DETAILS OF THE APPLICANT** (Parent requesting access to child) Surname:

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 34 of 47

Date

FulI names: Identity number/ Date of birth:

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 35 of 47

	NO. K.
D -	l•
PO.	lity
	👵 ża

Nationality:									
Occupation:									
Relationship to child:									
Residential									
address:									
			Code ()						
Phone number(h):	()								
Business address:									
			Code ()						
Phone number(b):	()								
Cellular number:									
Fax number:	()								
E-mail address:		ETATIC OF THE ATTO	DDNEV						
В	ע	ETAILS OF THE ATTO (if any)	JKNET						
Name and		(II ally)							
surname:									
Name of firm:									
Business address:									
			Code ()						
Phone number:	()								
Fax number.	()	DETAILS OF SUIT	D						
С	(if more tha	DETAILS OF CHIL n one child, continue of							
Surname:	(ii more tha	Tr one critic, continue of	n separate page)						
Full names:									
Identity Number/									
Date of birth:									
Place of birth:									
Country of									
habitual									
residence									
(immediately before removal):									
Indicate whether									
child holds									
his/her own									
passport or if	Own Passport	Mother's	Father's						
child is included	·	Passport	Passport						
on mother's or									
father's passport:									
Passport number.									
Nationality:									
Physical									
description of									
child: (please									
enclose a recent									
photograph)									
D		DETAILS OF P	PARENTS						
I. MOTHER		II. FATHER							
Surname:		Surname:							
Full names:		Full names:							
Identity number/		Identity number/ Date of birth:							

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 36 of 47

Γ	NO: K.
D_l:L	
Polity	org.za
	org.Za

Passport number:					Pass	port	num	ber											
Nationality:					Natio		y:												
Habitual	<u></u>		Hab						L										
residence:					resid	ence	:		L										
									L								_	_	
	ļ.,	Cod	e (<u> </u>	<u> </u>					1							Co	de	(<u> </u>
Phone number	(—)			Phon	e nu	mbe	r	()								
(h): Cellular number:	├─				(h): Cellu	larn	umb	051	+										
E-mail address:	├─				E-ma				+										
Occupation:	\vdash				Occu			S:	+										
Business	 				Busir	_		.000											
address:					Dusii	1033	auui	C33	•										
uuui essi																			
		Cod	e ()	i				H							Co	de	()
Phone number	()	- \		Phon	e nu	mbe	r	()							<u>'—</u>	
(b):	`_				(b):				1`										
Fax number.	()			Fax r	numb	er:		()								
III. DETAILS OF	MAR	RRIA	GE																
Date of marriage:		/	/		Place	of													
	<u> </u>				marr				\perp										
Date of divorce:		/	/		Place			ce:											
(if applicable)					(if ap														
E DETAILS OF	F PE	RSON	1 WE	ЮМ	CHIL	D IS	THO	OUG	HE	TC	B	<u> </u>							
Surname:	<u> </u>																		
Full names:		1			1 1														
Identity number/																/	/		
Date of birth:		1	Ι	1	 			Ц,		_	Щ		ᅱ	\perp	_		_		
Passport number:																			
Nationality:														<u> </u>					
Occupation:																			
Relationship to																			
child:																			
Dhysical																			
Physical description of																			
person: (please	<u> </u>																		
enclose a recent																			
photograph):																			
Last known																			
residential																			
address: (in the																			
country in which																			
this person now	()																	
resides)																			
Last known	()																	
residential phone																			
Number: (in the																			
country in which this person now																			
resides)																			
Last known																			
business																			
address: (in the	 																		
country in which	<u> </u>																		
this person now	<u> </u>																		
resides)	<u> </u>																		
Last known	(—)																	
business telephone	ĺ																		
number: (in the																			

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 37 of 47

country in which										
this person now										
resides)		_								
Last known										
cellular number										
Last known fax	(_)								
number: (in the										
country in which										
this person now										
resides)										
Last known e-										
mail address: (in										
the country in										
which this person										
now resides)										
F		PLACE	WHER	E THE	CHILD	IS THO	UGHT	го ве		
Present address										
of the child if	-									
different to those										
of the person										
who has taken	-									
the child:										
Details of other										
persons in the										
country to which										
the. child has										
been taken who										
might be able to										
supply additional										
information on										
the whereabouts										
of the child (e.g.										
names, address,										
telephone										
numbers,										
relationship to										
the child or taker										
of the child)										
G BRIEF D										
REMOVA			LD FRO	M THE	REPUB	LIC OR	THE R	ETENT:	ON OF	THE
CHILD A	BROAL)								
U DETAI	16.05	COLIDT	DDOCE	EDING	CTUAT		TAKEN	DI ACE	/ADE T	AKTNC
H DETAI	LS UF	COURT	PROCE	EDING			IAKEN	PLACE	/AKE I	AKING
(Provide	a datail	la of nam	and of n	artice n	PLACE			nhar (if	len ouen)	and the
										and the
stage i	eached	d. Please	aiso sta	ate wna			ements	were in	ріасе іі	า รอนเก
	1				Africa)					
	<u> </u>									
	<u> </u>									
The Republic:										
I										

	No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to chi	Idren's courts Page	e 38 of 47
Pol	ity	J	

Г							
	Outside	e the					
	Republi						
		FACTUAL	OR LEGAL	GROUNDS 1	USTIFYING THE RE	OUEST ARRANGE	MENTS
]	T						
-							
-							
	,			AF	RRANGEMENT		
	country	indicate wheth to which the if necessary:	child has b	licant is prepa een taken to a	red to travel to the attend the court	YES	NO
 Signature	e of app	olicant or his	or her att	torney			
Date:							
 Signature	and d	ate stamp o	f the Cent	ral Authority	of the Republic		
SU	ІММОІ	NS IN CON	TRIBUTIO		RM 12 CHMENT OF WAG	GES ORDER PRO	CEEDINGS
REGULA	TIONS	RELATING	б то сніі	2	OURTS AND INTER 2010 ation 36(1)]	RNATIONAL CHI	LD ABDUCTION,
				[File No:
			RI	FPURITC OI	F SOUTH AFRICA		
IN THE C	CHILD	REN'S COU		HE DISTRIC			
HELD AT	':						
TO:							

(respondent)

No: R. 250 Title: Chi	ildren's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts Page
OF:	
at(time) on th	summonsed to appear before this court, and to bring proof of your teday ofto show cause why a *contribution order/ attachment of made against you in terms of section 161 of the Children's Act, 2005 (Act Note the maintenance of
(full name(s) of chila	(ren))
on the grounds set o	ut in the particulars endorsed hereunder.
PARTICULARS OF	GROUNDS OF ALLEGED LIABILITY:
Dated atthis	day of20
 Clerk of the Children	la Court
NOTE	s court
If you fail to obey the court may issue attend or remain in	nis summons to attend the hearing or to remain in attendance during the a warrant for your arrest and in a summary manner inquire into your fattendance and, unless you satisfy the court that your failure was not due ce you to a fine or to imprisonment.
	PLEASE SEE REVERSE HEREOF
	REVERSE OF FORM 12
	RETURN OF SERVICE FOR OFFICIAL PURPOSES ONLY
I,, certify that	I have—
*	delivered a copy of the summons topersonally;
	or
*	offered a copy of the summons toa person apparently not young the age of 16 years and apparently residing or employed *residence/place of employment/place of business ofsince he/sh not conveniently be found and at the same time informing him/her nature and exigency thereof;

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 40 of 47 **Polity**

or

*	*affixed/placed a copy of the summons to/in the *outer/principal doo gate/post box of the *residence/place of employment/place of of, since he/she prevented the service by his/her*residence/place of employment/place of business closed.	business
Signed atthis_	day of20	
Signature of Sheriff	clerk/person authorised by Presiding officer	
Full first names and	surname (Block letters)	
Designation (rank)	Ex Officio Republic of South Africa	
Business address	Code	
	(Street address must be stated)	
	FORM 13 RING OF APPLICATION FOR VARIATION, SUSPENSION, RESCISSION IVAL OF CONTRIBUTION OR ATTACHMENT OF WAGES ORDER)N OR
REGULATIONS RE	LATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABD 2010 [Regulation 36(2)(a)]	UCTION,
	File	No:
	REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA	
IN THE CHILDREN HELD AT:	S COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF:	
IN THE MATTER of of:	* a contribution order/an order for the attachment of wages for the ma	intenance - -
(full name(s) of chi	d(ren))	
то:		
(respondent)		
ADDRESS:		- -
order/order for the	application for the * variation/suspension/rescission/revival of the *co attachment of wages made by the court against you atonabovementioned * child(ren) will be heard before this court on the _	for the



Dated at	this	day of	20		
Clerk of the	children's	court			
court may is or remain in	sue a war attendanc	rant for your	arrest and in you satisfy	ing or to remain in attendance during the a summary manner inquire into your faithe court that your failure was not due to	ilure to a
		1	PLEASE SEE	REVERSE HEREOF	
			REVERS	E OF FORM 13	
		F		N OF SERVICE LL PURPOSES ONLY	
I,, cer	tify that I	have—			
	*	delivered a	copy of the r	notice topersonally;	
				or	
	*	age of 16 of employn	years and ap nent/place of	tice toa person apparently not you parently residing or employed at the *re business of, since he/she could no me time informing him/her of the nature	esidence/ t conveni
				or	
	*	gate/post of	box of the , since	of the notice to/in the *outer/principal *residence/place of employment/place he/she prevented the service of employment/place of business closed.	
Signed at	this	day of	20		
Ful —— Designation	orised by p	eresiding offices and surnameEx Officio	(Blo	ock letters)	
				Code	
			(Street addre	ess must be stated)	
			F	ORM 14	
		LEOD THE V	ADTATION (SUSPENSION, RESCISSION OR REVIV	AL OF

File No: ____

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 42 of 47 **Polity**

REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA

TO THE CLERK OF THE CHILDREN'S COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF:
HELD AT:
FROM:
(respondent)
OF:
I HEREBY APPLY for the *variation/suspension/rescission/revival of the *contribution order/order for the attachment of wages made by the court against me at
theday of20for the maintenance of my child(ren):
GROUNDS FOR APPLICATION:
Dated atthisday of20
Respondent
FORM 15
CONTRIBUTION ORDER
REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010 [Regulation 36(4)]
File No.:
REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA
IN THE CHILDREN'S COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF:
HELD AT:
IN THE MATTER OF A CONTRIBUTION ORDER FOR THE MAINTENANCE OF:



No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 43 of 47 (full name(s) of child (ren)) BY: (respondent) **BEFORE:** ______(presiding officer of the children's court) on the ______day of ______20 _____ After hearing the evidence adduced and the court being satisfied that a contribution order has to be made against the said respondent in terms of section 161 of the Children's Act 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005), IT IS ORDERED THAT: (respondent) contribute *weekly/monthly towards the maintenance of the said child(ren) the amount of R _____with effect from _____ The first payment to be made on: and thereafter on: Payments must be made to the following person/ institution: Signed at ____this ____day of ____20 ____ Presiding officer of the children's court **NOTICE** The said respondent must in terms of section 166 of the Children' Act, 2005 (Act No. 38 of 2005) without delay give notice in writing to the clerk of the children's court of any change in his or her residential address or place of work, failing which he or she shall be liable on conviction to a fine or to imprisonment for a period not exceeding twelve months or to both such fine and imprisonment. **FORM 16** ORDER TO AN EMPLOYER TO DEDUCT AN AMOUNT FROM A RESPONDENT'S WAGES REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010 [Regulation 36(6)] File No.: REPUBLIC OF SOUTH AFRICA IN THE CHILDREN'S COURT FOR THE DISTRICT OF: **HELD AT:**

TO:

(name of employer)

TAKE NOT	TCE:					
respondent	tion order for R c) in terms of section ce of * his/her child(re	n 161 of t				
IT IS HER	EBY ORDERED THAT	-				
	t of the contribution of the contribution of Rfrom the citution:					
GIVEN at _	thisday of	20				
 Presiding o	fficer of the children's	court				
5			FORM 17			
RECORD	OF PROCEEDINGS I	N THE CHI	LDREN'S COURT	Γ IN TERMS OF	THE CHILDREN	S A
			ACT NO. 38 OF 2			
REGULAT	IONS RELATING TO		2010 Regulation 33]	INTERNATION	AL CHILD ABDU	ICT
REGULAT	IONS RELATING TO		2010	INTERNATION	File N	
REGULAT	IONS RELATING TO	[2010			
	IONS RELATING TO	[REPUBI	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI			
		[REPUBI	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI			
IN THE CH		[REPUBI	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI			
IN THE CH — HELD AT:	IILDREN'S COURT FO	REPUBI OR THE DI	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI STRICT OF:	FRICA	File N	llo: ₋
IN THE CH — HELD AT: — IN THE	MATTER OF PROC	REPUBIOR THE DISE	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI STRICT OF: OF THE CHILLE THE FOLLOWIN	FRICA DREN'S COURT IG CHILD(REN):	File N	llo: <u>.</u>
IN THE CH HELD AT: — IN THE	HILDREN'S COURT FO	REPUBIOR THE DIS	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI STRICT OF: OF THE CHILI THE FOLLOWIN ID NUMBER/DATE	FRICA DREN'S COURT	, IN TERMS NOT PRESENT AT	llo: ₋
IN THE CH HELD AT: — IN THE	MATTER OF PROC STATES	REPUBIOR THE DISE	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI STRICT OF: OF THE CHILI THE FOLLOWIN	PRESENT AT	File N , IN TERMS	llo: ₋
IN THE CH HELD AT: — IN THE	MATTER OF PROC STATES	REPUBIOR THE DISE	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI STRICT OF: OF THE CHILI THE FOLLOWIN ID NUMBER/DATE	PRESENT AT	, IN TERMS NOT PRESENT AT	llo: ₋
IN THE CH HELD AT: — IN THE	MATTER OF PROC STATES	REPUBIOR THE DISE	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI STRICT OF: OF THE CHILI THE FOLLOWIN ID NUMBER/DATE	PRESENT AT	, IN TERMS NOT PRESENT AT	llo: ₋
IN THE CHELD AT:	MATTER OF PROCI N'S ACT, 2005, IN RE FULL NAME(S) OF CHILD(REN)	REPUBIOR THE DISE	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI STRICT OF: OF THE CHILI THE FOLLOWIN ID NUMBER/DATE	PRESENT AT	, IN TERMS NOT PRESENT AT	llo: <u>.</u>
IN THE CHELD AT:	MATTER OF PROC STATES	REPUBIOR THE DISE	2010 Regulation 33] LICOF SOUTH AI STRICT OF: OF THE CHILI THE FOLLOWIN ID NUMBER/DATE	PRESENT AT	, IN TERMS NOT PRESENT AT	llo: <u>.</u>

Reasons why the child(ren) was/were not brought before the court:

AND THERE APPEARED: Social worker:
Interpreter:
Clerk of the court:
Mother/Guardian/caregiver:
Father/Guardian/caregiver:
Respondent:
Party(ies) allowed to join proceedings:
Legal representative(s):
Witnesses:
THE FOLLOWING EVIDENCE WAS ADDUCED:
FINDING/ORDER:

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 45 of 47

FORM 18

STATISTICS IN TERMS OF THE CHILDREN'S ACT, 2005 (ACT NO. 38 OF 2005)

Signature of presiding officer

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 46 of 47



REGULATIONS RELATING TO CHILDREN'S COURTS AND INTERNATIONAL CHILD ABDUCTION, 2010 [Regulation 34]

PERIOD FOR WHICH STATISTICS ARE SUBMITTED

FROM	TO	

Actions	Eastern Cape	Free State	Gauteng	Limpopo	Mpumalanga	North West	Northern Cape	Kwazulı Natal
No. of adoptions:								
No. of Inter-country adoptions								
No. of children found in need of care:								
No of children placed into foster care.								
No. of children receiving protection and								
alternative care orders(including kinship								
care, places of safety, children's homes								
and places of care):								
Parental rights and responsibilities: No.								
of applications for access:								
No. of parenting plans registered:								
No. of parenting plans varied:								
No. of interdicts applied for and granted:								
No. of auxiliary orders applied for and								
granted								
No. of monitoring orders made:								
No. of lay forums ordered:								
No. of pre-hearing conferences ordered:								
No. of family group conferences ordered:								İ
No. of lay forums held.								
No. of pre-hearing conferences held:								
No. of family group conferences held.			1					<u> </u>
No. of children legally represented by								
Legal Aid Board:								
No. of investigations and professional								
reports ordered (including from a								
medical doctor, psychologist, social								
worker, SAPS and educator}:								
No. of cost orders:								
No. of applications made to have rights								
enforced:								
No. of applications made to have the								
outcome of mediation in terms of section								
21:								
No. applications made to the children's								
court to have a PRR agreement made an								
order of court								
No. of applications made to the children's								
courts to amend/terminate a PRR								
agreement								
No. of applications made for assignment								
of care or contact								
No. of applications made by a biological								
father to have paternity confirmed:								
No. of applications made for the								<u> </u>
termination/extension/								
suspension/restriction of parental rights								
and responsibilities								
No of applications made to have		1						
parenting plan made an court order.								
No. of applications made to								
amenttoeimtnate parenting plan-								
No. of applications made to adjudicate								
care and contact disputes:								
Total		1	<u> </u>	1				<u> </u>
	<u> </u>	1	1		l		1	

No: R. 250 Title: Children's Act (38/2005): Regulations relating to children's courts... Page 47 of 47